

Prek HANDBOOK 2016-17

Legacy Christian Academy

3037 Bunker Lake Blvd. NW Andover, MN 55304 Telephone: 763.427.4595 Fax: 763.427.3398 Website: www.lcamn.org Office Hours: 7:00 am-3:30 pm

Table of Contents

| Letter Of Welcome | |
|---|----------------------------|
| Mission Statement | 2 |
| Philosophy of Early Education | 2 |
| Preschool Admissions Policies Requirements for Admission Birth Date Requirement for Enrollment Reasons for the Birth Date Requirement for Enrollment Minnesota Immunizations Law "Accidents" Policy Disclosure of Special Needs/Permanent Dismissal | 3 3 4 4 |
| School Hours/Classes | 5 |
| Security | 5 |
| Before School Child Care Program | 5 |
| After Care Child Care Program Late Pickup | |
| School Calendar and School Closings | 6 |
| Preschool Curriculum Goals Spiritual Social Emotional Physical Mental Our PreK Program Promotes Kindergarten Readiness Skills | 6 7 7 7 7 7 |
| Preschool Behavior Management Rewards For Following the Rules Consequences for Not Following the Rules | 8 |
| Daily Schedule and Lesson Plans | 9 |
| Finances | 9 |
| Transportation | 9 |
| Attendance | 10 |
| Health Regulations/Allergies | 10 |
| Accidents First Aid | |
| Non-Medical Emergencies | |
| Poison Control | 11 |
| Visitation | |
| Staff Requirements | |
| Bible Instruction | |

| Conferences12 |
|---|
| Parent/Teacher Communication12 |
| Clothing12 |
| Birthday Treats |
| Snacks14 |
| Lunch |
| Art Work |
| Nap Time Policy |
| Personal Items from Home14 |
| Field Trips15 |
| Research and Public Relations15 |
| Pets15 |
| Maltreatment of Minors: Who Should Report Child Abuse and Neglect? 15 What to Report. 16 Retaliation Prohibited. 16 Failure to Report. 16 |
| Data Privacy |
| Grievance Policy |
| Administration and PreK Staff17 |

Letter Of Welcome

Dear Parents:

Welcome to Legacy Christian Academy PreK Program. Your child will be entering a new way of living for this period of time each day. The staff shares with you the desire that this experience be a successful and happy one.

During your child's life, his/her education will be the shared responsibility of parents and teachers. The preschool experience begins this cooperative relationship by building upon and strengthening many fine habits and attitudes that you have taught your child in your home. It is our desire that each child would grow into an independent and sensitive individual, well adjusted and equipped to live in today's world.

This booklet is designed to help you understand the policies of the preschool and some of the ways in which you can prepare your child to make the best possible adjustment to his/her first educational experience. Please keep this booklet for reference throughout the year.

Legacy Christian Academy PreK program is licensed by the Minnesota State Department of Human Services. The license capacity is 40 children, although we limit each class to10. The DHS Division of Licensing phone number is 651.296.3971.

We want to work with you. If you have any questions at all, do not hesitate to talk to us. Together with you, we are looking forward to a successful and happy year for your child.

Sincerely in Christ,

Mrs. Lynda Domino, PreK Director Mrs. Amanda Nydam, PreK Teacher Mrs. Kendra Anderson, PreK Teacher Miss Lauren Byron, PreK Teacher Mrs. Felicia Enns, PreK Teacher Mrs. Kristin Zelin, PreK Teacher

Mission Statement

Legacy Christian Academy exists to equip the mind and disciple the heart of each student for Christ-like living.

Philosophy of Early Education

We believe that the young learner is more than just a child's brain, but a whole child with mental, social, emotional, spiritual, and physical elements. Therefore, we focus not only on the mental/academic component of a child, but also try to understand and engage the whole child in the process of learning.

We believe that learning is most successful when it involves hands-on activities that use as many senses as possible because young children learn through their senses. Therefore, the children are encouraged to be active learners as they touch, see, hear, taste, and smell in fun, playful activities that promote serious learning. Research shows that the paper and pencil method is the least effective way to help young children really understand. Early childhood educators do have success when they use music, games, play, art, creative imagination, experiments, pictures, books, and other sensory methods to help children experience and enjoy learning!

We believe a young child learns best in developmentally appropriate steps that build a strong foundation for future learning. Therefore, we begin teaching by assessing where the child is in his/her understanding and development. As his/her teacher, we add knowledge in developmentally appropriate steps, being careful not to skip important steps along the way.

We believe that each child is unique and special, with his or her own God-given timetable for development. Therefore, we nurture each child as an individual. We try to understand what motivates each one, how each one learns best and how to help each child experience success. In a classroom with children naturally at different stages and levels of development, each child needs to feel valued and able to find success at their level of development.

We believe individual children learn in different ways. Therefore, we purposely use a wide variety of teaching methods and styles to try to help all the students be successful learners.

We believe the attitude of the teacher and staff greatly affects the atmosphere in the class. Therefore, the teachers and staff strive to be positive, patient, and fair. The teachers and staff endeavor to model respect, kindness, and sensitivity, and encourage these characteristics in each student.

We believe that helping a young child learn self-control will be an important key to the child's success in school, relationships with others, and in life in general. Therefore, we teach the children to listen and follow directions. We teach the children to show respect for the staff, school property, and others.

We believe education should work in partnership with the child's family. Therefore, we respectfully and sincerely encourage family participation and effective communications between home and school.

We believe in maintaining the safety of all children. To protect the child and others from injury or to facilitate separation from the parent at arrival, we may hold the child tightly in our arms, carry the child, or use a gentle form of physical restraint.

We believe in nurturing a child through appropriate forms of touch. This may include spontaneous hugs, patting backs, rubbing backs, rocking, holding a child on our lap, or giving high-fives.

Preschool Admissions Policies

Requirements for Admission

Birth date requirement met (see page 3) Up-to-date immunization record (see page 4) Child is completely toilet trained (see page 4) Application for Enrollment completed Application Fee paid (see page 9) Special needs must be disclosed at the time of application for admission All PreK forms completed

Birth Date Requirement for Enrollment

As soon as a child turns four, he/she may join one of our classes if there is an opening. If the child turns four after September 1, the enrollment process may begin one month prior to your child turning four. In order to enter kindergarten, your child must turn five by the September 1 deadline.

Reasons for the Birth Date Requirement for Enrollment

Children are most likely to experience overall success in a class with their peers. Children may be advanced in a specific area, but most young children are not advanced in all areas. For instance, young children who are above average in academic areas still usually fit best with their peers in social, emotional, or physical areas.

A young child in a classroom finds himself or herself having to compete with children one or even two years older. This often negatively affects a child's developing self-esteem.

Children learn in developmental steps in a logical progression. When young children skip ahead to a class above their peer level, there is always a concern that they will miss some very important steps in that developmental progression that will affect future learning.

Young children often learn that they receive praise and attention when they show interest in "academic" things. Their interest is often a learned response because of the attention they receive, not because the interest is developmentally appropriate or a confirmation of real understanding. For instance, a child may recognize the letter A, but that does not mean the child really understands the concepts adults associate with the letter A. These concepts take time and maturity to understand.

Young children learn by repetition. They are not bored by fun, age-appropriate activities, but need and enjoy repeated opportunities to understand and apply what they are learning.

Studies show that when children are accelerated academically at an early age, they often "burn out" at a higher grade and begin to work under their potential. The early push often "backfires."

The younger children in any class are the ones most likely to need another year in that class in order to continue to gain the skills necessary to be successful in the next class. However, repeating a year needs to be decided carefully and thoughtfully, not casually.

Minnesota Immunizations Law

Minnesota state law requires that Verifiable Documentation of Immunization be provided before a student is registered and admitted to the Legacy Christian Academy PreK Program. This documentation must show the date and type of each dose administered OR laboratory evidence of immunity for polio, DPT, HIB, Mumps, Measles, and Rubella. Parental recall of dates and types of immunizations received will not be accepted.

Any student not complying with this Minnesota law, or any student failing to comply with the established schedule of immunizations, will not be admitted or will face suspension until compliance is reached.

Parents conscientiously objecting to immunizations may complete an immunization form and have it notarized.

All PreK forms (including Immunization Form and Health Care Summary) must be completed and submitted to LCA PreK before a child may start school.

"Accidents" Policy

LCA is not licensed for children who are not toilet trained. Therefore, <u>every child must be</u> <u>completely toilet trained in order to be enrolled and remain enrolled at LCA.</u> If a child has more than two "accidents" per quarter, the child may need to be withdrawn until he or she is fully toilet trained. (Training pants/pull-ups are an obvious indication that he or she is not fully toilet trained and may not be worn.)

One of the very first things we talk about in PreK is where the restrooms are located. We provide regular opportunities in our daily schedule for all children to go to the restroom whenever they need to. In such a child friendly environment, each child is expected to be able to tell a teacher when he or she needs to use the restroom. Each child is also expected to handle the process of using the restroom independently. We do not wipe for students. A parent has the option of allowing teachers to assist the child in buttoning pants, fastening snaps, etc., but the child will be expected to do the rest. If a child cannot get cleaned, a parent will be called.

Please keep an extra change of clothes (underwear, pants, shirt, socks, shoes, etc.) in your child's backpack in case of an accident.

Disclosure of Special Needs/Permanent Dismissal

We believe that God created each precious child and that each child has different strengths. Some may have special needs or a diagnosis such as Autism, ADD, ADHD, Defiance Disorder, etc. If your child has any special needs, we require disclosure at the time of application. We have a passion for children and we want to make sure we are able to provide the best services possible. Because we are not set up with a Special Education classroom and are not Special Education teachers, we need to evaluate if our program is the best fit for your child. Sometimes this may even become apparent after admission has been completed and classes have started. If we feel that we are not able to give any child the services needed or the child's behavior is negatively impacting the class as a whole, we reserve the right to permanently dismiss any child. It would be done at the teacher/director's discretion, but not without thought and prayer. Our structure, schedule, and style of teaching is often helpful for high functioning children. Disclosing a diagnosis does not mean your child will not be accepted. It just means that we need to partner with the parents to evaluate if LCA is the best option for your child. For further discussion about this, please call LCA and ask for Lynda Domino (PreK Director) or Joel Nydam (PreK-4th Grade Principal).

School Hours/Classes

5-Day PreK (Monday-Friday) - 8:00 am- 2:10 pm
3-Day PreK (Monday, Wednesday, Friday) - 8:00 am-2:10 pm
2-Day PreK (Tuesday, Thursday) - 8:00 am- 2:10 pm
½ Day, 3-4 Year Old Preschool (Tuesday & Thursday) - 8:00 am-10:45 am

Parents must accompany his/her child and must sign him/her in and out each day. No child is to enter or exit alone. Only those on the approved pick up list will be able to pick up your child. All parents and those on the approved pick up list must be ready to show a valid Driver's License or picture ID at anytime.

Security

Legacy Christian Academy is locked from 7:45 am until 2:10 pm and then again from 2:30 pm until 5:30 pm. If you are using the After Care Program, we ask that you get a key from the School Office. They are \$15 for the first key fob and \$7.00 for additional fobs. They are good for the school year. They do not work after 5:35 pm.

Before School Child Care Program

Before school care is available from 7:00-8:00 am for those enrolled in our PreK program. Although there is not a fee for before school care, each child attending the Before School Child Care Program must be registered prior to participation in the program. Registration Forms are available from the School Office or on our website at www.lcamn.org.

Preschool children must be dropped off at the Before School Child Care Program by a parent or guardian only.

Please report all absences to your child's teacher, not the LCA Health Office.

After Care Child Care Program

After our academic day ends, we offer an after care program from 2:10- 5:30 pm. There is a small fee for enrollment in this program. The fees are as follows:

5-Day After Care: \$55/month 3-Day After Care: \$35/month 2-Day After Care: \$25/month

All children must be pre-registered to use this program. Anyone using this program and has not pre-registered will be billed \$5 per hour.

Late Pickup

In order to foster feelings of security in our children, it is very important that the preschoolers are picked up on time. If for any reason, you will be later than usual in picking up your child, please call 763.427.4595 and dial ext. 270 to be connected to the After Care room. Your child will be more comfortable knowing that you are on your way. There will be a late pickup charge for any child picked up later than 5:30 pm.

The late fee is \$1 for each one-minute increment you are late. If you are more than one hour late, and we have not heard from you or successfully reached the names on your emergency card, the police will be contacted for assistance. Continued late pickup may result in a termination of preschool After Care services.

School Calendar and School Closings

With few exceptions, Legacy Christian Academy follows District #11's calendar. A calendar is available on our website at www.lcamn.org (click on Quicklinks, Calendar). It is also included at the back of this handbook. Vacation days will coincide with the LCA calendar. Fall and spring conferences will be held. In the event of bad weather, the decision concerning a possible school closing has to be made by 5:00 am and is based on the current weather conditions and weather forecasts at that time. School closings will be announced on TV (WCCO, KSTP and KARE11) as well as radio (KTIS) beginning at 5:30 am. LCA will always be closed when District #11 schools are closed; however, on rare occasions, LCA may be closed when District #11 schools remain open.

Preschool Curriculum Goals

Spiritual

To provide a loving, Christian example for the children to follow.

To encourage a love for God and for the Bible.

To help the children learn that God loves them and will always hear their prayers.

Social

To help children learn to work and play cooperatively.

To encourage feelings of mutual respect and tolerance of individual differences among people. To help children communicate constructively with other children and adults.

Emotional

To help each child develop confidence and good self-esteem.

To make the child's first school experience positive and successful.

To encourage self-control and self-discipline.

Physical

To encourage the development of large and fine muscle control.

To encourage eye-hand coordination.

To promote healthy habits (exercise, eating healthy foods, hand washing, regular visits to the doctor/dentist, etc.).

Mental

To help children learn about themselves and their world.

To encourage the development of memory, concentration, problem solving, and questioning. To encourage listening skills and hearing discrimination.

Our PreK Program Promotes Kindergarten Readiness Skills

- Knowledge of basic colors and shapes
- Sight and sound recognition for upper case and lower case letters
- Beginning sound of words
- Rhyming
- Introduction to guided reading
- Sight words
- Recognition of numbers 1-20
- Counting by rote and 1:1 correspondence
- Patterns
- Matching numerals to prepared sets
- Introduction to proper pencil grip and printing child's first name correctly
- Introduction to printing letters of the alphabet
- Introduction to printing numbers
- Role-playing/social skills
- Introduction to Spanish

Because we are a part of a K-12 school, we are able to offer our students the unique, awesome opportunity to go to Art, Music, Physical Education, and Media classes.

Preschool Behavior Management

We use positive behavior modification to teach children acceptable behavior and inner control. We take into consideration the child's age, intellectual development, emotional makeup and past experiences when managing behavior. Behavior management is always handled in a positive, caring, and calm manner.

Rewards For Following the Rules

The children will be regularly rewarded throughout the day with words of praise and encouragement, smiles, pats on the back, special class privileges, or other positive attention.

Consequences for Not Following the Rules

Each time a rule is not followed, it will be explained to the child:

- A. Why the particular behavior is unacceptable.
- B. What appropriate behavior looks like.
- C. What will happen if the child chooses to disobey.

Sometimes talking or praying with a child is all that is needed. Other times a child will benefit from some "time out" in the time out chair. Often a behavior will call for a logical consequence. For instance, if a child is throwing blocks, that child may lose the privilege to play in the block center for a short time. Praise, verbal reminders, and redirection are the primary forms of behavior management. A "time out chair" is used when necessary. After a brief time, the teacher will speak to the child and walk him/her through an opportunity to apologize and receive forgiveness before returning to regular classroom activities. When the conflict is between children, they are encouraged to talk it through and reconcile respectfully. The teacher will coach the students on kind words to use when a child feels upset.

The preschool teachers value the input and support of the child's parents and will keep them informed about their child's behavior.

This behavior management policy has proven itself to be very effective for the majority of children. If a pattern develops which indicates that it is not effective for an individual child, the teacher and parents will discuss how to adjust the behavior management plan to make it more effective for their child. Safety and classroom management will be factored in as well.

In the event a child is having behavioral issues that are negatively impacting the class, these steps will be followed in this order until a resolution is achieved:

Child's teacher will communicate with parent of child who is misbehaving

- 1. Meeting will be arranged with the Director and parents
- 2. Meeting will be arranged with Principal, Director, and child's parents
- 3. At the discretion of the Principal and Director, dismissal may be necessary
- 4. What's best for the child and the classroom as a whole will always be considered

At no time will physical aggression be accepted. Any child exhibiting behaviors that could jeopardize his/her own safety or the safety of others will be asked to go home for the remainder of the day. If the behavior continues, permanent dismissal may be necessary. In any and all of these situations, we will pray for the situation and make a decision based on what's best for all children.

Daily Schedule and Lesson Plans

Daily schedules and lesson plans are posted in the classroom as well as on our website. Children find security and comfort in following a schedule and knowing what to expect next. The daily schedule is planned very carefully, taking into account attention spans, the need for variety, the need for one activity to prepare for the next and the need to coordinate classroom schedules. Daily schedules include time to learn in small groups called learning centers, times to learn in a larger group as a whole class, time to be inside as well as outside (weather permitting), time for a special project, time to sing, time for books, time to play, and time for a snack.

Lesson plans are age appropriate, keeping in mind that young children learn best through activities that engage as many of the child's five senses as possible. Parents may request to review the childcare program plan and may visit the preschool during hours of operation at any time.

Finances

The Application Fee of \$100 is added to your payment plan once you enroll. The Application Fee is not refundable for any reason.

A Late Fee of \$25 will be assessed for late tuition payments. Payments are due on the first day of the month.

An NSF Fee of \$30 will be assessed for any check returned by our bank. Late fees will also apply.

Payments delinquent for more than 60 days will require the family to be disassociated from Legacy Christian Academy.

Tuition should be mailed to the School Office or deposited in the Tuition Drop Box, rather than sent to school with a student. This eliminates the chance of a student losing the check before bringing it to the office.

Tuition refunds will be considered when a student moves out of this area or when after consultation with the teachers and parents, the administration determines that the needs of the student cannot be met by the school. All refunds require a 30-day advance notice of withdrawal. The Application Fee is not refundable for any reason.

Transportation

Transportation is the responsibility of the parent. The preschool staff and school district have no responsibility to provide this service. If carpooling is desired, please notify your child's teacher and she will try to help you coordinate with other parents.

No PreK child or sibling may ever be left in a vehicle without an adult.

Parents are not to drive cars into the bus loading area to either drop children off or pick them up.

Attendance

Regular attendance is important, however, a slight fever, sore throat, cough, or rash are stay-athome signals. These are indicators of more serious illness. Students are not allowed to come to school if they have a temperature of 100 degrees Fahrenheit or above or have diarrhea. Students must be completely vomit free, diarrhea free, and fever free (without taking any medication) for at least 24 hours before returning to school. If a child has a rash, they may not come to school unless a current physician's note shows that the rash is not communicable. If your child has pus draining from the eye, discharge from any bodily opening, lethargy, respiratory distress (excessive coughing, excessive nasal discharge), nausea, sore throat, etc. he/she should stay home from school until he/she is completely symptom free.

Please protect your child and others by keeping him/her at home until he/she is entirely well. Please notify your child's teacher when your child is absent, whether for illness or vacation. Also, let us know if he/she has had a communicable disease such as, but not limited to, lice, scabies, impetigo, chicken pox, ringworm, measles, mumps, etc. The preschool is required to share this information with the Public Health Department as well as with other parents.

Health Regulations/Allergies

Minnesota state law requires that all students be immunized before admission to the school unless you conscientiously object. The Health Form must be completed and signed by the physician or the Public Health Department and returned to the School Office before school begins. These are state requirements to protect your child as well as other children.

Medication to be administered to your child while attending preschool must come in its original container and be accompanied by complete written instructions from the doctor. Non-prescription drugs must be accompanied by written permission and instructions by the parent. The director must have a signed letter from your physician giving us permission to administer non-prescription medications and ointments at the parent's request.

If we notice symptoms of illness, we will phone you to pick up your child, and we will make arrangements to have your child rest away from the classroom to prevent classmates from prolonged exposure. Please inform your child's teacher of his/her food allergies. We have snacks daily and cooking from time to time, so we should be aware of foods your child cannot have. Because of the growing number of peanut and nut allergies, the PreK classrooms are peanut and nut free. No peanuts, nuts, or tree nuts of any type are allowed in the classroom. We desire to keep all children safe.

There will be a notice on the hall bulletin board whenever your child has been exposed to an infectious or communicable disease.

Anytime an address or phone number (home or work) is changed, please send a note to the teacher and School Office about this immediately. The teacher must be able to contact you during the day in case of an illness or problem.

Accidents

If it appears that an accidental injury is in any way serious, the Director will call the parents of the injured child and have them take the child to a physician. If the parents cannot be reached, medical attention will be provided and efforts then will be continued to notify parents. We request parents sign the statement on the Health Form giving Legacy Christian Academy permission to have your child transported to Mercy Hospital in the event of an emergency.

First Aid

A first aid kit has been placed in a convenient spot in both PreK classrooms. All permanent staff will be trained in first aid. At least one staff member trained in CPR will be on the site at all times.

Non-Medical Emergencies

Routine fire and tornado drills are practiced in the Legacy Christian Academy PreK program. In the event of evacuation of the building due to fire, etc., parents will be notified where the child is to be picked up. Lock down drills are also practiced, but with great sensitivity to the innocence of a child.

Poison Control

Legacy Christian Academy PreK has taken every precaution to ensure that potential poisons are out of the reach of the children we care for. In the event that an accidental ingestion should occur, our staff will consult with Poison Control Center. If necessary, 911 will be called. A parent will also be notified.

Visitation

Legacy Christian Academy PreK has an open door policy for parents of PreK students. We recommend parents wait to visit until after the first four weeks of the preschool year. This time is a period of adjustment for your child. During the first few days of your child's preschool experience, he/she may be shy or upset when he/she is first left. This is normal, and we have experienced that they adjust more quickly if the parents leave right away. Parents may also volunteer in the classroom. While we prefer knowing ahead of time that you will be coming with your child (so we can get projects ready if so desired), you are always welcome. Advance notice is not required. We follow our same plan whether a visitor is present or not. Although we love little children, it is quite often too difficult to have younger siblings in the classroom. We ask that you make alternate arrangements for their care. Doing so also makes your visit more special to your child.

Staff Requirements

Legacy Christian Academy PreK maintains a one-to-ten teacher/child ratio for all preschoolers. Each member of our staff is trained to work with preschool children. Our preschool offers you the best care and training under the direction of qualified Christian teachers.

Bible Instruction

It is not our desire at Legacy Christian Academy to teach the beliefs of any particular denomination. It is our desire to train children Scripturally to practice Christian standards of conduct.

A Bible story or a story containing biblical truth is incorporated into each day as well as integrated into our social skills curriculum. Children are also encouraged to memorize Bible verses. Our Bible curriculum is designed to reinforce any devotions you may have in the home and enhance any church-school experience your child has.

Conferences

Although progress reports will be sent home quarterly, individual parent conferences will be scheduled twice during the year. In the fall conference we are seeking to know your child(ren) better, show assessments from the start of the school year and the learning that has already taken place. Additional assessments will occur before the spring conference. It is always exciting to show growth and strengths as well as communicate about the students we love so much. Special conferences may be arranged through your child's teachers. Because we believe communication is key to a successful experience, you may email or call your child's teacher. Drop off time is also a good time to communicate. Your child's teacher is scheduled to work Monday-Friday until 3:15 pm. Although the teachers are often working longer, when possible, please allow the teacher 24 hours to get back to you. Most of the time, it will not take that long, but email may or may not be accessed in the evening.

If you need to talk with a teacher sooner, you may contact Lynda Domino after hours at 763.228.0455. Please note that it may be difficult to call during school hours to discuss concerns. Please schedule an appointment. During school hours, the teacher's first responsibility is the children.

Parent/Teacher Communication

In addition to conferences, phone calls, emails, and hopefully daily interaction, teachers will send out a "Peek At the Week" so you will know what your child is learning, why he/she is learning it, and what you can do at home to reinforce it. Legacy also sends out an "eNews" which has important dates and details about events. Also, please remember to check your child's folder(s) daily. The red folder is especially important. It's how we communicate with you. The other folder is for your child's projects.

Clothing

Because the children will be involved in a variety of play experiences, we ask that you send your child in washable play clothes so he/she will not have to worry about getting dirty. It is our goal to train the child to be as independent as possible. Therefore, the child should wear clothing that he/she can readily fasten himself or herself. Outer clothing (especially boots) should be large and easy to manage.

Please label ALL of your child's outer clothing, including jackets, sweaters, coats, boots, scarves, hats, and mittens. It will help us at recess and dismissal time to tell which of the "three blue jackets" is your child's! To promote independence and getting ready for kindergarten, we ask that you have your child practice getting ready to go outside at home (snow pants, boots, jacket, hat, mittens). If your child wears boots to school, he/she should bring shoes to wear in the classroom.

If the temperature outside is below zero (or the wind chill is below zero), we will not go outdoors to play. We will also not go out if it's raining, lightning, too icy, or unsafe conditions. On rare occasion, a special event/enrichment activity may take the place of outdoor recess that day. We love to be outside to get some energy out and enjoy fresh air. Although going out for recess is scheduled daily, alternate arrangements may be made at the teacher's discretion.

If your child is too sick to go outside, then your child is too sick to attend school. Students must be healthy enough to participate reasonably in all of the daily activities. If a student complains of not feeling well or seems to be crying or in pain and cannot participate reasonably, we will call and ask the student's parent to pick the child up from school. We are not licensed for sick children.

If special circumstances arise that your child may not go outside, please contact your child's teacher in advance (not the morning of). Because of our teacher/student ratio, your child's teacher may not stay in with your child. It takes time to find alternate care by a staff member who is qualified to care for PreK students.

During warm weather, we advise that you put sunscreen on your child as we do not apply it. Your child may also wear a hat at recess to protect him/her. For safety reasons, please do not send your child to school in flip-flops.

We are not responsible for lost or stolen items. Lost and found items will be kept for a month. After this, items will be donated to charity.

Birthday Treats

Parents who wish to furnish treats for their child's birthday are requested to bring items that are institutionally made. Birthday treats are typically passed out by the child, but sent home for the friend to eat at a parent's discretion. Food brought as treats must be in commercially prepared packages and must be bakery fresh. Items such as bakery made cupcakes will be eaten in the classroom. Due to time, cupcakes are preferred over full cakes (we don't have time to cut pieces for everyone). Please notify us if you do not want your child to have certain special treats. Parents are welcome to visit. Your child's teacher will add special songs, etc., to make this a very happy occasion for your child. Please keep in mind that we are a school and although we want to make the child feel very special, we cannot make this into a birthday "party" with party favors, games, etc. Upon being notified about the day your child will celebrate his/her birthday, please communicate with your child's teacher about your intentions for that day. The teacher reserves the right to approve/disapprove according to what best suits the needs of the class as a whole. Summer birthdays will be celebrated during the school year. Books can be donated to the school library in honor of your child's birthday. Please ask your child's teacher for details.

Snacks

Please send a small nutritious snack from two of the four food groups and a drink for your child each day. If your child is in the after care program, please send an additional snack from two of the four food groups. Please label all items.

Lunch

We have lunch from 10:45-11:15 am. Please either send a cold lunch from home or order one on our school website (www.lcamn.org). All children have the opportunity to purchase milk for lunch. The cost is \$4.00 for one milk card (good for 10 milks).

No gum is allowed. Food is only to be eaten during snack and lunch times.

Art Work

Our PreK students are fortunate to attend art classes taught by a licensed art teacher. In addition, free art time is encouraged on a daily basis. Do not be surprised or disappointed if your child does not bring home a picture or artwork each day. Since each child is an individual, what appeals to him/her may vary from day to day. Your child may also participate in creative activities such as play dough or water play, and even though he/she has nothing to bring home, he/she may have had a creative experience. Many times the process is more important to the preschool child than the finished product. All children are encouraged to participate because they become more confident as they try new things and they develop skills they will need in kindergarten.

Nap Time Policy

Students may bring a small blanket and small stuffed animal for our rest time. Please take your child's rest things home to be washed each week (or when soiled). Students will be able to lay and rest quietly on their cot with the option of reading books if they desire. If a child has rested quietly for 30 minutes, he/she will be allowed to do a quiet activity of the teacher's choice after completing the nap. This will allow a quiet environment for the other students who still have an opportunity to rest.

Personal Items from Home

We provide plenty of toys for your child during the school day. To keep students focused on instruction and to keep your child from being sad about a toy from home being lost, no toys or items from home will be allowed in the classroom unless your child has a special reason to bring the item in (scheduled share time, Number Box, Letter Box, etc.).

Field Trips

Because we have many working parents and transporting PreK age children has additional responsibilities, we try to arrange for additional in-school experiences for your child. These experiences vary from year to year, but they give parents peace of mind knowing we are bringing the experience to the child, not the child to the experience. The exception to this is our PreK programs will do a walking field trip to the Farmstead and McDonald's in May. They will have plenty of supervision and will be holding a rope while they walk. You will have the opportunity to sign a permission slip.

Research and Public Relations

Parental permission will be obtained before each occasion of research, experimental procedure, or public relations activity involving a child.

Pets

Your child will not have contact with any animal without written permission.

Maltreatment of Minors: Who Should Report Child Abuse and Neglect?

- Any person may voluntarily report abuse or neglect.
- Those who work with children in a licensed facility are legally required or mandated to report and cannot shift the responsibility of reporting to a supervisor or to anyone else in the facility. If you know or have reason to believe a child is being or has been neglected or physically or sexually abused within the proceeding three years, you must immediately (within 24 hours) make a report to an outside agency as follows:
- > If a child is in immediate danger call 9-1-1
- If suspected abuse occurred at licensed facility call the Department of Human Services, Licensing Division's Maltreatment Intake line at 651.431.6600
- If suspected abuse occurs within a family or in the community, call the local county social services; Anoka County 763.422.7125, Hennipen County 763.348.3552, Sherburne County 763.241.2600.
- If your report does not involve abuse or neglect, but does involve possible violations of Minnesota Statutes or rules that govern the facility, you should call the Department of Human Services, Licensing Division at 651.431.6500.

What to Report

- Definitions of maltreatment are contained in the reporting of Maltreatment of Minors Act (Minnesota Statutes, section 626.556). A copy of this statute is available in the Child Program Plan located in the PreK Office.
- A report of the above definitions should contain enough information to identify the child involved, any persons responsible for the abuse or neglect (if known) and the nature or extent of the maltreatment or violations. For reports concerning suspected abuse within the facility, the report should include any action taken by the facility in response to the incident.
- An oral report of suspected abuse or neglect made to one of the above agencies by a mandated reporter must be followed by a written report to the same agency within 72 hours, exclusive of holidays and weekends.

Retaliation Prohibited

An employer of a mandated reporter shall not retaliate against the mandated reporter for reports made in good faith or against a child with respect to whom the report is made. The Reporting of Maltreatment of Minors Act contains specific provisions regarding civil actions that can be initiated by mandated reporters who believe that retaliation has occurred.

Failure to Report

A mandated reporter who knows or has reason to believe a child is or has been neglected or physically or sexually abused and fail to report is guilty of a misdemeanor. In addition, a mandated reporter who fails to report maltreatment that is found to be serious and reoccurring may be disqualified from employment in positions allowing direct contact with persons receiving services from programs licensed by the Department of Human Services and by the MN Department of Health, and unlicensed Personal Care Providers Organizations.

Data Privacy

Records concerning your child: enrollment forms, health records, observation records, and written parent-teacher conference reports, and all other information about your child is confidential information and will only be accessible to you, the Director, your child's teacher, and a person designated by the State Licensing Department to review our records for licensing purposes and the valuators for accreditation.

Grievance Policy

If an issue comes up, please talk with your child's teacher first. We use Matthew 18:15-17 as our guide. If the conflict is not able to get resolved, then please talk with the PreK Director Lynda Domino. If you are still in need of resolution, then you may talk with Principal Joel Nydam.

Thank you so much for entrusting us to care for your child. We are confident you will love our program. Our goal is to provide a safe, secure opportunity for your child to grow spiritually, socially, academically, emotionally, and physically. We want your child to love school! We absolutely love our students and look forward to a fun year!

Administration and PreK Staff

Mr. Jake Mulvihill, Head of School Dr. Shawn Lohse, 7th-12th Grade Principal Mr. Joel Nydam, PreK-6th Grade Principal Mrs. Lynda Domino, PreK Director Mrs. Amanda Nydam, 3's Teacher Miss Lauren Byron, 2-Day PreK Teacher Mrs. Kristin Zelin, 3-Day PreK Teacher Mrs. Kendra Anderson, 5-Day PreK Teacher Mrs. Felicia Enns 5-Day PreK Teacher Miss Jayme Buchelt, Art Teacher Mrs. Cheryl Fregeau, Phy Ed Teacher Mr. Todd Manske, Phy Ed Teacher Mrs. Tirzah Gerber, Music Teacher Mrs. Stacey Smitsdorff, Media Teacher & Lunch Helper Mrs. Kim Beedle Mrs. Crystal Hoffman Mrs. Sue Happ, Advancement Director Mrs. Sarah Klawiter, Interim Athletic Director Mrs. Toni Johnson, Office Manager Mrs. Janelle Albrecht, Human Resources Mrs. Teri Pierro, Accounting Specialist (Tuition) Mrs. Cyd Budish, Administrative Support

LEGACY CHRISTIAN ACADEMY | 2016-17 CALENDAR

| Ibig and the second system Ibig and the second system <th colspan<="" th=""><th>Teacher Workshops First Day of School</th><th>FEBRUARY 2017 S M T W Th F S u u 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 u u u u</th><th> 7-12 Conferences 4-8 Presidents' Day Staff Development 7-12 Conferences 1-8 </th></th> | <th>Teacher Workshops First Day of School</th> <th>FEBRUARY 2017 S M T W Th F S u u 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 u u u u</th> <th> 7-12 Conferences 4-8 Presidents' Day Staff Development 7-12 Conferences 1-8 </th> | Teacher Workshops First Day of School | FEBRUARY 2017 S M T W Th F S u u 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 u u u u | 7-12 Conferences 4-8 Presidents' Day Staff Development 7-12 Conferences 1-8 |
|--|---|---|---|--|
| 29 C | abor Day Conferences (4-8) Conferences (8-4) | WARCH 2017 S M T W Th F S Image: Second secon | 9 End of Q3 10 Staff Workday 13-17 Spring Break 30 K-6 Conferences 4-8 31 K-6 Conferences 8-4 | |
| S M T W Th F S 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 - - - - - | End of Q1 Staff Development | S AP RIL 2017 S M T W Th F S 0 0 0 0 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 | 14 Good Friday 14-17 Easter Break 16 Easter | |
| NOVENDER 2016 11 23-25 24 S M T W Th F S I 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 I I I | Veterans Day Thanksgiving Break Thanksgiving Day | MAY 2017 S M T W Th F S 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 Ju Ju Ju | 25 Last Day of School 26 Staff Workday 29 Memorial Day | |
| DECEMBER 2016 S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T U Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T U Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T U T I 2 3 A 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 | End of Q2 Christmas Break Christmas Day | Key | NO SCHOOL End of Quarter Holiday (No School) | |
| JANUARY 2017 23-6 3-6 3-6 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 - 1 - - - 1 - | Christmas Break Winterim (7th-12th) Martin Luther King Day | Legacy Christian Acade 3037 Bunker Lake Blvd Andover, MN 55304 763.427.4595 763.316.6241 (Attendance I www.lcamn.org | . NW | |

Calendar Template by calendarlabs.com

I have been given a copy of the Legacy PreK Handbook for 2016-17. I have read the contents and understand that any questions or concerns I may have may be verbally asked or may be emailed to ldomino@lcamn.org. I understand the staff has given careful consideration to what's best for children.

Signature _____

Date _____